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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEBRASKA

OGLALA SIOUX TRIBE,

Plaintiff,

CASE NO:  4:12-cv-3027

v. BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO DISMISS PLAINTIFF’S
SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINTJASON SCHWARTING, LICENSEE OF

ARROWHEAD INN, INC.; JASON
SCHWARTING dba ARROWHEAD INN,
INC.; SANFORD HOLDINGS, LLC,
LICENSEE OF D&S PIONEER SERVICE;
SANFORD HOLDINGS, LLC dba D&S
PIONEER SERVICE; STUART J. KOZAL,
LICENSEE OF JUMPING EAGLE INN;
STUART J. KOZAL dba JUMPING
EAGLE INN; CLAY M. BREHMER,
PARTNER, LICENSEE OF STATE LINE
LIQUOR; CLAY M. BREHMER,
PARTNER, dba STATE LINE LIQUOR;
DANIEL J. BREHMER, PARTNER,
LICENSEE OF STATE LINE LIQUOR;
DANIEL J. BREHMER, PARTNER, dba
STATE LINE LIQUOR; PIVO, INC. dba
HIGH PLAINS BUDWEISER; DIETRICH
DISTRIBUTING CO., INC.;
ARROWHEAD DISTRIBUTING, INC.;
COORS DISTRIBUTING OF WEST
NEBRASKA, INC. dba COORS OF WEST
NEBRASKA; ANHEUSER BUSCH
INBEV WORLDWIDE, INC.; SAB
MILLER dba MILLER BREWING
COMPANY; MOLSON COORS
BREWING COMPANY; MILLERCOORS,
LLC.; PABST BREWING COMPANY,

Defendants.

4:12-cv-03027-WKU-CRZ   Doc # 117   Filed: 04/27/12   Page 1 of 17 - Page ID # 336



2
7062.56921 // 514410_4.doc

COME NOW, Clay M. Brehmer, Partner, Licensee of State Line Liquor; Clay M.

Brehmer, Partner, dba State Line Liquor; Daniel J. Brehmer, Partner, Licensee of State Line

Liquor;  Daniel  J.  Brehmer,  Partner,  dba  State  Line  Liquor  and  Dietrich  Distributing  Co.,  Inc.,

Defendants (collectively, “the Moving Defendants”), and, pursuant to NECivR 7.0.1(a)(1)(A),

hereby submit their Brief in support of their Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff’s Second Amended

Complaint.

INTRODUCTION

The Oglala Sioux Tribe, Plaintiff, filed its Second Amended Complaint in the above-

captioned action seeking both monetary and injunctive relief against the Moving Defendants to

redress the damages that Plaintiff has allegedly suffered as a result of the Moving Defendants’

sale of alcohol to unknown, unnamed third parties.  Although separated into five separate causes

of action, Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint essentially alleges that it has incurred various

societal and medical costs in caring for those residents of the Pine Ridge Indian Reservation who

are afflicted with or affected by alcoholism.

Clay M. Brehmer and Daniel J. Brehmer are both partners in and licensees of State Line

Liquor, a liquor retail store located in Whiteclay, NE.  The Brehmers are members of the general

category  of  defendants,  which  Plaintiff  refers  to  as  the  “Retail  Defendants.”   Dietrich

Distributing Co., Inc., is a wholesale liquor distributor located in Gering, Nebraska.  Dietrich

Distributing Co., Inc., is a member of the general category of defendants, which Plaintiff refers

to  as  the  “Distributor  Defendants.”   Together,  the  Moving  Defendants  move  this  Court  for  an

Order dismissing the Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint for failure to state a claim upon

which relief can be granted.

FACTS
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The following factual allegations are relevant to the Moving Defendants’ Motion to

Dismiss:

1. The  Plaintiff  Oglala  Sioux  Tribe  is  the  federally  recognized  tribe  of  the  Lakota

people. Second Amended Complaint, ¶ 1.

2. Clay M. Brehmer and Daniel J. Brehmer, partners, are licensed as retail sellers of

beer and other alcohol by the State of Nebraska and doing business as State Line

Liquor in Whiteclay, NE. Second Amended Complaint, ¶ 6.

3. Dietrich Distributing Co., Inc. is a Nebraska licensed distributor of alcoholic

products for Pabst Brewing Company and Miller and supplies such products to

State  Line  Liquor  and  the  other  liquor  retailers  named  as  defendants  herein.

Second Amended Complaint, ¶ 8.

4. The Oglala Sioux Tribe is unable to enforce its laws in Whiteclay, NE. Second

Amended Complaint, ¶ 18.

5. The sale of alcohol is permitted in Whiteclay. Second Amended Complaint, ¶ 19.

6. The Oglala Sioux Tribe cannot enforce Nebraska’s laws that regulate the sale of

alcohol. Second Amended Complaint, ¶ 54.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

To survive a motion to dismiss, a complaint must contain sufficient factual matter,

accepted as true, to “state a claim to relief that is plausible on its face.” Ashcroft v. Iqbal, 556

U.S. 662, 129 S. Ct. 1937, 1949, 173 L.Ed.2d 868 (2009) (citing Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly,

550 U.S. 544, 127 S. Ct. 1955, 167 L.Ed.2d 929 (2007)).  While a court must accept as true all of

the allegations contained in a complaint, a court is not bound to accept legal conclusions couched

in factual allegations. Id.  Threadbare recitals of the elements of a cause of action, supported by
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mere conclusory statements, do not suffice. Id.  Determining whether a complaint states a

plausible claim for relief is a context-specific task that requires the reviewing court to draw on its

judicial experience and common sense. Id.  But where the well-pleaded facts do not permit the

court to infer more than the mere possibility of misconduct, the complaint has not “show[n]” -

“that the pleader is entitled to relief.” Id.; Fed. Rule Civ. Proc. 8(a)(2).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Plaintiff’s  contention  is  that  the  Moving  Defendants  had  a  duty  to  protect  Plaintiff  and

failed to discharge that duty.  Additionally, each cause of action in Plaintiff’s Second Amended

Complaint is based on the same series of allegations: (1) that the Retail Defendants sold alcohol

to unknown, unidentified third parties; (2) that the unknown, unidentified third parties acted of

their own independent volition in consuming or reselling alcohol beyond the premises of the

Retail Defendants; and, (3) that Plaintiff has expended its resources to care for those affected by

alcoholism  on  the  Pine  Ridge  Indian  Reservation.   Plaintiff  asserts  that  it  is  entitled  to  both

monetary damages and injunctive relief as a result of the Moving Defendants’ alleged violation

of Nebraska State law, Federal law and Oglala Sioux Tribe ordinance.

Plaintiff’s  claim  that  the  Moving  Defendants  have  violated  Nebraska  State  law  fails  to

state  a  claim upon which  relief  can  be  granted  because  Nebraska  State  law does  not  authorize

Plaintiff’s private cause of action and Plaintiff has no standing to assert violations of Nebraska’s

Liquor Control Act.  With regard to Plaintiff’s claim that the Moving Defendants breached a

duty of care to Plaintiff, Nebraska law is clear that there is no cause of action for dramshop

liability in this state.  See Pelzek v. American Legion, 236 Neb. 608, 610, 463 N.W.2d 321, 323

(1990).  Also, as a third-party payor, Plaintiff is limited to pursuing subrogation remedies and

does not have an independent claim against any alleged tortfeasors.  Finally, Plaintiff’s claims
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for private and public nuisance fail to state claims under state law because, under its theory of

private nuisance, the invasion Plaintiff complains of is conduct of unknown and unnamed third

parties and, under its public nuisance claim, Plaintiff fails to plead facts that would establish that

it has suffered damages different in kind then the general population.

Insofar as Plaintiff seeks relief under Federal law, 18 U.S.C. § 1161 is inapplicable

because Whiteclay, NE, is not in “Indian country,” which is the express geographical limit of

Section 1161 and because Plaintiff lacks standing to enforce the provisions of Section 1161.

Also, Plaintiff cannot maintain an action against the Moving Defendants for alleged violations of

tribal laws because Whiteclay is not located on the Pine Ride Indian Reservation.

Finally, Plaintiff is not entitled to the relief it requests because the Retail Defendants

cannot be ordered to discriminate in the sale of alcohol to customers on the basis of race or

ethnicity and there is no legal authority that would require any of the Moving Defendants to

insure the safety of those who buy or consume alcohol or those who are affected by persons who

consume alcohol.

ARGUMENT

I. PLAINTIFF’S SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT FAILS TO STATE A CLAIM

UNDER STATE LAW.

A. Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint fails to state a claim under Nebraska

statutes and Plaintiff lacks standing to assert claims under the Nebraska

Liquor Control Act.

Each cause of action in Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint stems from the alleged

failure of the Moving Defendants to prevent alcohol use among the Native American population

on the Pine Ridge Indian Reservation.  Plaintiff’s premise seems to be that the Moving

Defendants, whether collectively or individually, had a duty to prevent the consumption of

alcohol on the Pine Ridge Indian Reservation despite the fact that Plaintiff admits that the
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Moving Defendants do not operate any aspect of their business within the borders of the Pine

Ridge Indian Reservation.  Despite vague allegations that the Moving Defendants have

“breach[ed]  their  duties  under  the  law of  the  State  of  Nebraska,”  and  that  their  sale  of  alcohol

“violate[s] … the laws of Nebraska,” Plaintiff does not, and cannot, specify exactly which

Nebraska law(s) the Moving Defendants have purportedly violated.

The alcohol industry is and always has been a heavily regulated industry, the regulation

of which is generally left to the states.  U.S. CONST. amend. XXI.  Pursuant to the Twenty-First

Amendment to the United States Constitution, Nebraska enacted its Liquor Control Act,

§§ 53-101, et seq. (hereinafter, “the Act”).  The Act is the only “Nebraska law” that regulates the

sale and distribution of alcohol in this state.  However, the Act can only be enforced by the

Nebraska Liquor Control Commission (hereinafter, “the Commission”). See Neb.  Rev.  Stat.

§ 53-116 (“The power to regulate all phases of the control of the manufacture, distribution, sale,

and traffic of alcoholic liquor, except as specifically delegated in the Nebraska Liquor Control

Act, is vested exclusively in the commission.”).  The Act does not authorize a civil cause of

action for an alleged violation, and courts cannot extend liability beyond that which is expressly

provided in the Act. See Flame Bar, Inc. v. Nebraska Liquor Control Comm'n, 204 Neb. 76, 78,

281 N.W.2d 390, 391 (1979) (“The power to regulate is vested in the commission, not the

courts.”); see Pelzek v. American Legion, 236 Neb. 608, 463 N.W.2d 321 (1990) (recognizing

that, “extending liability for the sale or gift of liquor beyond the limits provided by statute was a

function of the legislature, not the court.”).  See Holmes v. Circo, 196 Neb. 496, 499, 244

N.W.2d 65, 67 (1976) (“[S]tatutes of this type do not create a civil remedy or impose a duty on

the part of the bar or tavern operator toward injured third parties.”).  As importantly, the

prescribed penalties for violations of the Act can only be enforced by the Commission. Neb. Rev.
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Stat. § 53-116 (Reissue 2008) (“The power to regulate all phases of the control of the

manufacture, distribution, sale, and traffic of alcoholic liquor, except as specifically delegated in

the Nebraska Liquor Control Act, is vested exclusively in the [C]ommission.”)

Accordingly, Plaintiff’s claim that the Moving Defendants “breach[ed] their duties under

the law of the state of Nebraska” fails to state a claim because the Act does not authorize a civil

cause of action for Plaintiff to seek damages nor does Plaintiff have standing to enforce the

provisions of the Act.

B. The Moving Defendants, as a matter of law, are not liable for alleged

damages arising from the consumption of alcohol by third parties.

Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint also fails to state a claim because regardless of

whether Plaintiff’s claims are couched in terms of negligence, intentional wrongdoing,

conspiracy or private or public nuisance, each one of Plaintiff’s causes of action depends upon a

finding of wrongdoing by the Moving Defendants in their sale or distribution of alcohol.  To that

end, the law and public policy of this State are clear:  There is no dramshop liability in Nebraska

and vendors of alcohol are not liable to third persons for injuries or damages resulting from the

acts of intoxicated persons, whether on the theory that the dispensing of liquor constitutes a

direct wrong or actionable negligence. Pelzek v. American Legion, supra.

Plaintiff’s claim for damages arising out of the Moving Defendants’ sale of alcohol is not

a  matter  of  first  impression  in  Nebraska.   In Pelzek v. American Legion, supra, an American

Legion Hall sold alcohol to a minor, Gwendolyn Pelzek, to the point that she became both

visibly and physically intoxicated. Id., 236 Neb. at 608-609, 463 N.W.2d at 322.  Ms. Pelzek

then drove away from the American Legion Hall and collided with a parked automobile, which

resulted in extensive injuries to Ms. Pelzek. Id.  Unlike in the case at bar, there was no dispute in

Pelzek that the American Legion Hall had violated the Act and its provisions prohibiting the sale
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of alcohol to minors. Id., 463 N.W.2d at 323.  Ms. Pelzek urged the Court that such a prohibition

in the Act supports a duty to protect minors from the harmful effects of alcohol. Id.  As Plaintiff

is  doing  here,  Ms.  Pelzek  sued  to  recover  damages  from  the  vendor  that  sold  her  the  alcohol.

The Court  affirmed the dismissal  of Ms. Pelzek’s complaint and observed that “[t]he repeal of

the dramshop liability provisions [by the Nebraska Legislature’s enactment of the Act in 1935]

was an expression of Nebraska public policy.  The Legislature has not since reinstated dramshop

liability.” Id.  And, as long as that continues to be Nebraska’s public policy, courts cannot hold a

vendor or distributor of alcohol liable for damages arising out of that sale or distribution of

alcohol. Id.

Here, Plaintiff is making the same dramshop liability argument that was advanced by the

plaintiff in Pelzek.  Specifically, Plaintiff claims that it has been injured as a proximate result of

the  Moving  Defendants’  sale  of  alcohol  to  members  of  its  Reservation.   The  Court  in Pelzek

specifically rejected any such dramshop liability on that basis and reasoned:

At common law, and apart from statute, no redress existed against persons selling,
giving, or furnishing intoxicating liquor, or their sureties, for resulting injuries or
damages due to the acts of intoxicated persons, whether on the theory that the
dispensing of liquor constituted a direct wrong or constituted actionable
negligence.   This  rule  was  based  on  the  theory  that  the  proximate  cause  of  the
injury was the act of the purchaser in drinking the liquor and not the act of the
vendor in selling it.
Although selling liquor to a minor is a violation of [the Act], it is not the
proximate  cause  of  any  injuries  that  the  minor  might  suffer.   It  is  the  negligent
operation of an automobile after the drinking of liquor which causes the injury.

Id., 236 Neb. at 610, 463 N.W.2d at 323 (internal quotations omitted).

Here, no matter what theory Plaintiff advances, Pelzek establishes  that  the  Moving

Defendants have not committed a wrongful act in selling alcohol to members of the Oglala Sioux

Tribe and, therefore, are not liable to Plaintiff under any theory Plaintiff has or could plead.
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C. Plaintiff, as a third party payor, does not have a direct cause of action against

the Moving Defendants.

Plaintiff claims that since it has expended resources to care for tribe members affected by

alcoholism, it has been harmed and should therefore be allowed to recover damages from those

who allegedly sold alcohol to its members.  However, as a third party payor-i.e., someone who

paid for the medical expenses of another, Plaintiff does not have a direct cause of action against

any alleged tortfeasor.  Nationwide, the settled law is clear that: “one who pays for the medical

expenses of another may not bring a direct, independent action to recover those expenses from

the alleged tortfeasor.” Republic of Venezuela ex rel. Garrido v. Philip Morris Companies, Inc.,

827 So.2d 339 (2002) (citing, among others, Lyons v. Philip Morris, Inc., 225 F.3d 909 (8th

Cir.2000)).

In Garrido, for example, the foreign governments of several countries, including

Venezuela, attempted to sue the tobacco companies for the “direct out-of-pocket tobacco-related

health-care  costs  and  …  productivity  losses”  that  the  countries  suffered  as  a  result  of  the

defendants’ marketing and sale of tobacco products in those countries. Id., at 340.  In dismissing

Venezuela’s and the other foreign governments’ claims, the Florida District Court of Appeal

succinctly held:

[A] third-party payor is limited to pursuing subrogation remedies and does not
have an independent claim against alleged tortfeasors. * * * Simply, the
government of Venezuela does not have a direct independent cause of action
against the tobacco companies to recover for smoking-related medical expenses
incurred by its citizens.

Id., at 341 (citations omitted).  Likewise, Plaintiff here does not have an independent, direct

cause of action against  the Moving Defendants to recover for alcohol-related medical expenses

incurred as a third-party payor of medical expenses incurred by its members.
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D. Plaintiff’s causes of action for private and public nuisance should be

dismissed for the additional reasons that the Moving Defendants have not

invaded Plaintiff’s property rights and Plaintiff has not plead damages that

are different in kind than those people in the general public who are also

affected by alcoholism.

Although Plaintiff sets its claims for private and public nuisance apart from its other

causes of action, the nuisance claims are nothing more than mere restatements of Plaintiff’s

general theory that the Moving Defendants should somehow be held liable for selling alcohol to

Oglala  Sioux  tribe  members.   Accordingly,  like  each  of  Plaintiff’s  other  causes  of  action,  the

nuisance claims require a showing of wrongful conduct. See NJI2d Civ. 17.01, Nebraska

Supreme Court Committee on Practice and Procedure, Comment III (2011-2012 ed.) (stated that

in order to recover on a claim for nuisance, “there must be liability-forming conduct”).

However, as previously argued, Pelzek makes clear, “no redress exist[s] against persons selling,

giving, or furnishing intoxicating liquor, or their sureties, … [because] the proximate cause of

the injury was the act of the purchaser in drinking the liquor and not the act of the vendor in

selling it.” Pelzek, 236 Neb. at 610, 463 N.W.2d at 323.  Because there is no dramshop liability

in Nebraska, Plaintiff cannot establish the requisite element of “liability-forming conduct” under

either of its nuisance theories as a matter of law.

Furthermore, under a private nuisance claim, Nebraska courts hold that “[a] private

nuisance is a nontrespassory invasion of another’s interest in the private use and enjoyment of

land.” Hall v. Phillips, 231 Neb. 269, 272, 436 N.W.2d 139, 142 (1989) Restatement (Second)

of Torts, §§ 821A, et seq. (1979).   However,  the  invasion  that  Plaintiff  complains  about,  i.e.,

“safe and unimpeded use of the streets, sidewalks and other public places,” and “ability to

develop and enhance the value of [its] land,” (Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint, ¶¶ 61, 65),

is the result of the conduct of unknown and unnamed third parties who consume the alcohol, not
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the Moving Defendants’.  To the extent Plaintiff argues that it is the sale of alcohol to unnamed

and unknown third-parties is the impetus of the nuisance, that argument, besides being tenuous,

fails because there is no dramshop liability in Nebraska.

Finally, Plaintiff’s cause of action for public nuisance fails as a matter of law because in

order for a private party to maintain a cause of action for public nuisance, that private party must

plead facts the would establish that it has suffered a special injury that is distinct and different in

kind then that suffered by the others in the general public. Hartford v. Womens Services, P.C.,

239 Neb. 540, 544, 477 N.W.2d 161, 165 (1991); Schroder v. City of Lincoln, 155 Neb. 599, 52

N.W.2d 808 (1952).  Here, the injuries that Plaintiff claims to have suffered are costs associated

with  caring  for  those  afflicted  with  or  affected  by  alcoholism.   Plaintiff  claims  that  the  Lakota

people on the Pine Ridge Indian Reservation are more greatly affected by alcoholism.  However,

Plaintiff does not plead that the ills suffered by the Lakota people are different in kind than the

ills  suffered  by  others  in  the  general  population  that  are  also  afflicted  with  or  affected  by

alcoholism.  Merely establishing that damages are greater in magnitude does not establish

damages that are different in kind. Id.

II. PLAINTIFF’S SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT FAILS TO STATE A CLAIM

FOR RELIEF UNDER EITHER FEDERAL LAW OR OGLALA SIOUX TRIBE

LAW.

A. Whiteclay, Nebraska is not in “Indian Country,” which is the express

geographical limit of 18 U.S.C. § 1161.

Plaintiff also alleges that the Moving Defendants’ sale and distribution of alcohol violates

18 U.S.C. § 1161.  However, the text of Section 1161 expressly states that it is only enforceable

in “Indian country,” which is defined in the Indian Liquor laws as follows:

Except as otherwise provided in sections 1154 and 1156 of this title, the term
“Indian country,” as used in this chapter, means (a) all land within the limits of
any Indian reservation under the jurisdiction of the United States Government,
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notwithstanding the issuance of any patent, and, including rights-of-way running
through the reservation, (b) all dependent Indian communities within the borders
of the United States whether within the original or subsequently acquired territory
thereof, and whether within or without the limits of a state, and (c) all Indian
allotments, the Indian titles to which have not been extinguished, including rights-
of-way running through the same.

18 U.S.C.A. § 1161.

As plaintiff admits, Whiteclay is not located on the Pine Ridge Indian Reservation.

Furthermore, Whiteclay is not a “dependent Indian community,” which is a “limited category of

Indian lands that … have been set aside by the Federal Government for the use of the Indians as

Indian land … [and are] under federal superintendence,” Alaska v. Native Vill. of Venetie Tribal

Gov't, 522 U.S. 520, 527, 118 S. Ct. 948, 953, 140 L.Ed.2d 30 (1998), nor is Whiteclay an

“Indian allotment,” meaning that it is a parcel of land that was created out of a diminished Indian

reservation and held in trust by the Federal Government for the benefit of individual Indians. Id.,

citing United States v. Pelican, 232 U.S. 442, 34 S. Ct. 396, 58 L.Ed. 676 (1914).  Plaintiff’s

only  contention  is  that  Whiteclay  is  located  on  lands  that  are  claimed  by  Plaintiff.   However,

Plaintiff’s mere belief that it should have title to the lands in Whiteclay, Nebraska, provides no

legal basis for claiming that Whiteclay is located in “Indian country” as defined by Section 1161.

B. As a criminal statute, 18 U.S.C. § 1161 does not authorize a private, civil

cause of action.

The Indian Liquor laws also do not create a private civil cause of action in Plaintiff’s

favor.  Section 1161 and its related sections, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1152 and 1154, are all sections within

Title 18 of the United States Criminal Code.  As such, any action to enforce a purported violation

of Section 1161 can only be instituted in the name of the United States to protect society’s

interest in security, fairness and freedom. Kunzer v. Magill, 667 F.Supp.2d 1058, 1060-61

(D.Minn.2009); citing United States v. Wadena, 152 F.3d 831, 845-46 (8th Cir.1998)

(recognized that the presence of a criminal statute neither creates nor implies a corresponding

4:12-cv-03027-WKU-CRZ   Doc # 117   Filed: 04/27/12   Page 12 of 17 - Page ID # 347



13
7062.56921 // 514410_4.doc

private right of action); see also, Coosewoon v. Meridian Oil Co., 25 F.3d 920, 929 (10th

Cir.1994) (held that, “Absent an express grant of a private cause of action, a mere proscription of

behavior does not justify an inference of a private cause of action for its violation ….”) (internal

quotations omitted).  The United States Supreme Court has said that Indian tribes do not possess

independent authority over liquor transactions. Rice v. Rehner, 463 U.S. at 731, 103 S. Ct. at

3301–3302; see also, Bittle v. Bahe, 192 P.3d 810, 821-23 (Okla. 2008).  Accordingly, Plaintiff

lacks standing to assert a claim for alleged violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1161, as that authority has

been expressly delegated to the states to exercise through their police powers.  Plaintiff’s Second

Amended Complaint, insofar as it asserts a cause of action for purported violations of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1161, should therefore be dismissed for lack of standing and for failure to state a claim upon

which relief can be granted.

C. Oglala Sioux Tribe ordinances cannot be enforced outside of the reservation

boundaries.

Despite recognizing in Paragraphs 19 and 54 of its Second Amended Complaint that it is

“unable to enforce Tribal law in Whiteclay,” Plaintiff repeatedly argues that the Moving

Defendants’ sale and distribution of alcohol in Whiteclay constitutes a violation of tribal law,

and that the Retail Defendants’ sale of alcohol in Whiteclay somehow “continued” onto the Pine

Ridge Indian Reservation by virtue of the independent conduct of unknown third parties.

Neither claim states a cause of action because to the extent Plaintiff seeks to hold the Moving

Defendants liable for purported violations of the Tribe’s criminal laws, the United States

Supreme Court has unequivocally said that tribes lack the authority to regulate nonmembers'

activities on land over which the tribe cannot “assert a landowner's right to occupy and

exclude[.]” Strate v. A-1 Contractors, 520 U.S. 438, 456, 117 S. Ct. 1404, 137 L.Ed.2d 661

(1997); Montana v. United States, 450 U.S. 544, 557, 564, 101 S. Ct. 1245, 67 L.Ed.2d 493
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(1981).  Here, it is undisputed the Moving Defendants do not sell alcohol within the boundaries

of the Pine Ridge Indian Reservation.  As such, Oglala Sioux ordinances have no force or effect

on the Moving Defendants’ operation of their businesses in Whiteclay, Nebraska.

II. THE POLICY IMPLICATIONS UNDERLYING PLAINTIFF’S REQUESTED

RELIEF, ALONE, REQUIRE A DISMISSAL OF PLAINTIFF’S SECOND

AMENDED COMPLAINT.

A. Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint is requesting that this Court

authorize and compel racial and ethnic discrimination by the Moving

Defendants.

The basic premise of Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint is that the Moving

Defendants should not be allowed to sell alcohol to Oglala Sioux Tribe members that reside on

the Pine Ridge Indian Reservation.  The alarming implication of Plaintiff’s request is that the

Moving Defendants should refuse to sell alcohol to the Oglala Sioux solely on the basis of their

race and ethnicity.  Perhaps even more concerning is that Plaintiff is also asking this Court to

authorize and compel prospective racial and ethnic discrimination in the Moving Defendants’

operation of their businesses.

Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1981, every individual, regardless of race or ethnicity, enjoys the

right to enter into a contract with another.  In the retail context, Section 1981 has been applied to

prevent a retailer from refusing to sell its product to someone based on their race or ethnicity if

the consumer demonstrates an interest in purchasing the goods, which the retailer otherwise

makes available to the public.  See Green v. Dillard’s, Inc., 483 F.3d 533, 538 (8th Cir. 2007).

Here, the Retail Defendants hold alcohol out for sale to the general public.  Once a

member of the Oglala Sioux Tribe sets foot on the premises of a Retail Defendant with an aim

toward purchasing alcohol, the tribe member has a constitutionally protected interest in the Retail

Defendant completing the sale. Id. Despite the fact that there is not a single statute or case in the
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State of Nebraska that precludes the Moving Defendants from conducting their business in

Whiteclay, and despite the fact that the Moving Defendants are compelled under Section 1981

not to discriminate against protected classes in the sale of their product, Plaintiff nonetheless

believes that the Moving Defendants are somehow acting unlawfully in failing or refusing to

discriminate in the sale of alcohol to members of the Oglala Sioux Tribe.

Not only does Plaintiff seek to hold the Moving Defendants liable for recognizing its

Native American customers’ constitutionally protected right to contract, but it also is requesting

that this Court issue an injunction that would mandate future racial or ethnic discrimination.  The

absurdity of this request cannot be understated.  Plaintiff is seeking an order from this Court that

would actually command the Retail Defendants to refuse the sale of their otherwise publicly

available  goods  to  members  of  the  Oglala  Sioux  Tribe  who  live  on  the  Pine  Ridge  Indian

Reservation solely based on their race and ethnicity.  If Plaintiff’s requested injunctive relief

were actually available to Plaintiff, the Moving Defendants would only have one of two options

available to them, either violate 42 U.S.C. § 1981 by refusing to sell alcohol to members of the

Oglala Sioux Tribe or violate the Court’s injunction against selling alcohol to Oglala Sioux Tribe

members.  This is an impossible remedy that is not available to Plaintiff.

B. If the Moving Defendants were held liable to Plaintiff, it would essentially

make  vendors  of  alcohol  insurers  of  the  health  and  safety  of  those  who

consume alcohol or who are otherwise affected by the consumption of

alcohol.

Finally, Nebraska courts have recognized two simple principles: (1) the repeal of

dramshop liability provisions in 1935 and the Legislature’s subsequent refusal to reinstate

dramshop liability is “an expression of Nebraska public policy,” Pelzek, supra, and (2) no civil

liability exists against alcohol vendors for damages that arise out of a customer’s consumption or
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use of the purchased alcohol. Id., citing Holmes, 196 Neb. at 500-501, 244 N.W.2d at 68.

Plaintiff is asking this Court to disregard these policy declarations and impose a new policy: that

anyone involved in the chain of distribution of alcohol is an insurer of the safety of those

consuming the alcohol.  There is no legal authority that allows a court to disregard Nebraska’s

stated policy on the sale and distribution of alcohol in this state.

CONCLUSION

Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint fails to state a cause of action that would entitle

Plaintiff to the requested relief and, for the reasons stated above, the Moving Defendants request

that the Court grant their motion to dismiss and dismiss the Second Amended Complaint with

prejudice, as a matter of law.

DATED: April 27, 2012.

CLAY M. BREHMER, PARTNER,
LICENSEE OF STATE LINE LIQUOR;
CLAY M. BREHMER, PARTNER, DBA
STATE LINE LIQUOR; DANIEL J.
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